

ing order shall remain effective until notice, hearing and determination are effected pursuant to other provisions of law, or, in the interim, as otherwise ordered. Such agency order shall be appealable to the appropriate district court and the provisions of chapter 15 shall govern the procedure and scope of review on such appeal.

Sec. 22. **REPEALER.** Minnesota Statutes 1971, Sections 115.05, Subdivision 2; 115.07, Subdivisions 2, 4, and 6; 115.43, Subdivision 3; 115.45, Subdivision 2; 115.47; 115.81; 116.08; 116.30, and 116.31 are repealed.

Sec. 23. This act is effective the day following its final enactment.

Approved May 19, 1973.

---

### CHAPTER 375—S.F.No.1147

[Coded]

*An act relating to motor vehicles; registration and taxation; providing charges for filing applications; amending Minnesota Statutes 1971, Section 168.33, by adding a subdivision.*

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1971, Section 168.33, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 7. MOTOR VEHICLES; REGISTRATION FEE. The registrar shall charge and receive for each application presented through the United States mail or at a state office a filing fee of 50 cents. Such fee shall be in addition to all other statutory fees and taxes.

Approved May 19, 1973.

---

### CHAPTER 376—S.F.No.1095

*An act relating to the regulation of barbers in the state of Minnesota; amending Minnesota Statutes 1971, Sections 154.03; 154.16; 154.18; and 154.22.*

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1971, Section 154.03, is amended to read:

**154.03 BARBERS; APPRENTICES MAY BE EMPLOYED.** No registered apprentice may independently practice barbering, but he may as an apprentice do any or all of the acts constituting the practice of barbering under the immediate personal supervision of a registered barber, ~~and only one such apprentice shall be employed in any barber shop.~~ Not more than two apprentices may be employed in any barber shop and each such apprentice must be under the immediate personal supervision of a separate registered barber.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1971, Section 154.16, is amended to read:

**154.16 CAUSES FOR REVOCATION.** The board of barber examiners may either refuse to issue or renew, or may suspend or revoke, any certificate of registration or shop registration card for any one or combination of the following causes:

- (1) Gross malpractice or gross incompetency;
- (2) Continued practice by a person having an infectious or contagious disease;
- (3) Advertising by means of knowingly false or deceptive statements;
- (4) Habitual drunkenness or habitual or excessive indulgence in the use of drugs, including but not limited to narcotics as defined in either 26 U.S.C.A., Section 4731, or Minnesota Statutes, Section 618.01, barbiturates, amphetamine, benzedrine, dexedrine, or other sedatives, depressants, stimulants, or tranquilizers;
- (5) Immoral or unprofessional conduct or practice and conduct or practice which violates the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 186;
- (6) The commission of any of the offenses described in section 154.19, clauses (3), (4), (5), (6), (7), or (8);
- (7) Violation of the so-called Sunday closing laws, being sections 624.01 to 624.03;
- (8) A registered apprentice working in a barber shop in which he has a financial interest; and
- (9) Failure to comply with the sanitary rules and regulations of the board of barber examiners.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 1971, Section 154.18, is amended to read:

154.18 **FEES.** The fees collected, as required in this chapter, shall be paid in advance to the secretary of the board of barber examiners and deposited by him in the state treasury, to be disbursed by the secretary on the order of the chairman in payment of expenses lawfully incurred by the board.

The fees to be paid the board of barber examiners required by chapter 154, as amended, are:

(1) For examining applicant ~~for~~ and issuing certificate of registration as a registered barber, ~~\$20~~ \$30;

~~(2) For issuing a certificate of registration as a registered barber, \$10;~~

~~(3)~~ (2) For renewing certificate of registration as a registered barber, \$10;

(4) ~~(3)~~ For restoring certificate of registration as a registered barber within one year of expiration, \$15; provided, however, no such restoration fee is required of barbers age 70 or over;

(5) ~~(4)~~ For examining applicant ~~for~~ and issuing a certificate of registration as a registered apprentice, ~~\$10~~ \$17;

~~(6) For issuing a certificate of registration as a registered apprentice, \$7;~~

(7) ~~(5)~~ For renewing a certificate of registration as a registered apprentice, \$7;

(8) ~~(6)~~ For restoring a certificate of registration as a registered apprentice, within one year of expiration, \$10;

(9) ~~(7)~~ For examining applicant for a teacher's certificate, \$25;

~~(10)~~ (8) For issuing a certificate of registration as a registered teacher, \$25;

(11) ~~(9)~~ For renewing a certificate of registration as a registered teacher, \$25;

(12) ~~(10)~~ For restoring a certificate of shop registration within 30 days after expiration date, ~~\$7~~ \$10; provided, however, no such restoration fee is required of those age 70 or over and who operates a barbershop as part of the barber's residence;

~~(13)~~ (11) For issuing a certificate of registration as an approved barber school, \$100;

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

(14) ~~(12)~~ For renewing a certificate of registration as an approved barber school, \$100;

~~(15)~~ (13) For issuing a student permit, ~~\$3~~ \$5;

The fees prescribed above for the renewal of certificates of registration as a registered barber and registered apprentice include the assessment made for the Unfair Trade Practice Act and shall be effective for the renewal of the 1968 licenses.

The fee to be paid for issuing an initial certificate of shop registration shall be ~~\$15~~ \$25 and for renewing a certificate of shop registration of a shop within a community on or before June 30 of each year, ~~\$2~~ \$5.

Every barber shop in business on May 20, 1967 shall have the right to continue until June 30, 1967, without the payment of any fees or any other act and shall thereafter apply for renewal of a certificate of shop registration in accordance with the provisions of chapter 154, as amended.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 1971, Section 154.22, is amended to read:

**154.22 BOARD OF BARBER EXAMINERS CREATED; TERMS.** A board, to be known as the board of barber examiners, is established to consist of three members appointed by the governor. Each member shall be a practical barber who has followed the occupation of a registered barber in this state for at least five years immediately prior to his appointment. Each member shall be a graduate from the ~~eighth grade of a grammar school~~ twelfth grade of a high school, or have an equivalent education, and must have knowledge of the matters to be taught in approved schools of barbering, as set forth in section 154.07, and shall be qualified and competent to pass upon all matters likely to come before the board. One of the members shall be a member of, or recommended by, a union of journeymen barbers which shall have existed at least two years, and one shall be a member of, or recommended by, the master barbers association of Minnesota.

The members of the board shall serve for three years. The governor may remove a member for cause.

Members appointed to fill vacancies caused by death, resignation, or removal shall serve during the unexpired term of their predecessors. The present members of the board of barber examiners shall remain in office until the completion of their respective terms.

Sec. 5. **EFFECTIVE DATE.** This act shall be in effect the day next following its enactment.

Approved May 19, 1973.

Changes or additions indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.